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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Murphy McMiUm, Mayor 
and Member of the Town Council 
Town of Jena, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanymg fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the busmess-typc 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remammg fund information of the Town of Jena, Louisiana 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, which collectively comprise the Town's basic fmancial 
statements, as listed m the table of contents 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmanaal statements m 
accordance with accountmg prmciples generally accepted m the United States of America; this mcludes 
the design, implementation, and mamtenance of mtemal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted 
our audit m accordance with auditmg standards generaUy accepted in the United States of America 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the fmancial statements are free from matenal misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtam audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, mcludmg the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those nsk assessments, the auditor considers mtemal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the fmancial statements m order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate m the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprcssmg an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's intemal control. Accordmgly, we express no such opmion. An audit also includes evaluatmg 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overedl presentation of the fmancial statements 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions 

dIt ink I.' Amu lain /fn/tln/< of CP/l ' , AILKU'Uppi Si'Ufn/,>/ CP h. IdUU-'Kiiui Soiwtxfol CPA,' 



Opinions 

In our opmion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, m all matenal respects, the 
respective fmancial positaon of the govemmental activities, the business-type activihes, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remainmg fund information of the Town of Jena, Louisiana as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2012, and the respective changes m fmancial position and cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accountmg principles generally accepted in the Umted States of 
Amenca 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 8 and 32 through 34 
be presented to supplement the basic fmancial statements Such information, although not a part of the 
basic fmancial statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
It to be an essential part of fmancial reportmg for placing the basic fmancial statements in an appropnate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certam limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditmg standards generally accepted in the United 
States of Amenca, which consisted of mquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and companng the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
mquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtamed durmg our audit of the basic 
fmancial statements We do not express an opmion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opmion or provide any 
assurance 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formmg opinions on the fmancial statements that collectively 
comprise the Town of Jena, Louisiana's basic financial statements The combining and mdividual fund 
statements and other supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combinmg and individual fund statements are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directiy to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
fmancial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures apphed in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certam additional procedures, including comparing and reconaling 
such information directiy to the underlymg accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
fmancial statements or to the basic fmanaal statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditmg standards generally accepted m the Umted States of Amenca. In our opmion, 
the combining and individual fund statements are fairly stated, m all matenal respects, m relation to the i 
basic financial statements as a whole. 

Q<h/i6) sdi /m^, ^M" 
Natchez, Mississippi 
May 17,2013 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 
i 
I MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
! 

DECEMBER 31,2012 

The management of the Town of Jena, Louisiana offers readers of the Town of Jena, Louisiana's (Town) financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the fmancial activihes of the Town for the year ended 
December 31,2012 This Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") is designed to provide an objective 
analysis of the Town's fmancial activities based on currentiy known facts, decisions, and conditions. It is 
intended to provide readers with a broad overview of Town fmances It is also mtended to provide readers 
with an analysis of the Town's short-term and long-term activities based on information presented in the 
fmanaal report and fiscal policies that have been adopted by tiie Town Specifically, this section is designed to 
assist the reader m focusmg on significant fmancial issues, provide an overview of the Town's financial activity, 
identify changes m the Town's finanaal position (its abihty to address the next and subsequent year challenges), 
identify any matenal deviations from the fmancial plan (the approved budget), and identify individual fund 
issues or concerns 

The Town presents its fmancial statements under the reportmg model required by the Govemmental 
Accountmg Standards Board Statement No 34. This reportmg model changes the presentation of financial data, 
and also the manner m which the information is recorded We encourage readers to consider the information 
presented here in conjunction with additional information presented throughout this report 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This section is mtended to serve as an mtroduction to the Town's fmancial statements The Town's basic 
fmancial statements consist of the govemment-wide fmanaal statements, fund fmancial statements, and notes 
to the fmanaal statements. This report also contains other supplementary information, which is m addition to 
the basic financial statements. 

Govemment-Wide Finanaal Statements 

Government-wide financial statements are designed by GASB Statement No, 34 to change the way m which 
govemmental financial statements are presented It now provides readers with a concise "entity-wide" 
statement of net position and statement of activities, which seek to give the user of the financial statements a 
broad overview of the Town's financial position and results of operations m a manner similar to pnvate sector 
busmesses 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabihties using the accrual 
basis of accountmg, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies The difference 
between the two is reported as net position Over time, increases or decreases m net position may serve as a 
useful mdicator of whether the fmancial position of the Town is improvmg or weakening 

The statement of activities presents information which shows how the government's net position changed 
durmg this year. All changes m net position are reported as soon as the underlymg event occurs, regardless of 
the timmg of the related cash flows Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items 
that will only result m cash flows m future periods (e g, uncollected taxes). 

Each of these reports is broken down between govemmental activities and business-type activities. 
Governmental activities normally are those activities that are supported by taxes, licenses, permits, fmes, and 
mtergovemmental revenues; for example, the police and fire departments Business-type activities are 
functions that arc mtended to support their costs through charges for services or fees, such as the Water, Gas, 
and Sewer Departments 



TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2012 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may, over time, serve as a useful mdicator of a government's fmancial position 
At the close of the most recent year, the Town's assets exceeded its liabihties by $11,498,026 (net position), this 
represents an mcrease of $301,159 from last year Of this total net asset amount, $3,586,083 is unrestiicted net 
position. The Town's net position are comprised of $6,484,604 from govemmental activities and $5,013/422 from 
busmess-type activities 

The followmg is a condensed statement of the Town of Jena's net position as of December 31,2012 and 2011-

Govemmental Activities Busmess-Type Activities Total 
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 

$ 2,806,549 $ 2,499,044 $ 1,740,958 $ 1,894,398 $ 4,547,507 $ 4^93,442 
3,765,370 3,551.704 3.601,450 3,834,491 7,366.820 7,386,195 

$ 6,571,919 $ 6,050.748 $ 5.342.408 $ 5,728.889 $ 11,914327 $ 11,779,637 

87,315 $ 67,552 $ 328,986 $ 325,218 $ 416,301 $ 392,770 
: ' : 190,000 : 190,000 

$ 87315 $ 67.552 $ 328,986 $ 515.218 $ 416301 $ 582,770 

$ 3,765370 $ 3,551,704 $ 3,411,450 $ 3,464,491 $ 7,176,820 $ 7,016,195 

10 10 - - 10 10 
735,113 718,236 735,113 718,236 

2,719,224 2,431,482 866,859 1,030,944 3,586,083 3.462,426 

Assets 
Current and other assets 
Capital assets (net) 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Other habihties 
Long-term liabihties 

Total liabilities 

Net position 
Invested in capital 
assets, net 

Restncted for capital 
projects 

Restiicted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net position $ 6484,604 $ 5.983.196 $ 5.013.422 $ 5.213.671 $ 11.498.026 $ 11.196.867 

By far the largest portion of the Town's net position ($7,176,820 or 62%) reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e g , land, buddmgs, machmery and equipment. Town irrfrastructure, etc) less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that are still outstandmg The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequenUy, these assets are not available for future spendmg Although the Town's capital assets are 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided 
from other sources, smce capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities 

The remammg balance is comprised of ($3,586,083 or 31%) unrestiicted net position, which may be used to meet 
the government's on-gomg obhgatioi\s to citizens and creditors and ($735,123 or 7%) restncted net position, 
which have been designated for debt service 

The Town has total outstandmg debt of $190,000, which was used to fmance some of the $7,366,820 capital 
assets Total habilities of $416301 are equal to 4% of the total net position 

The Town's govemmental activities increased net position by $501,408. This mcrease is primarily due to excess 
sales tax revenues The Town's busmess-type activities decreased net position by $200,249 This decrease is 
pnmanly due to operating losses from the sewer system services 



TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2012 

Govemment-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

The followmg is a summary of the statement of activities for the years ended December 31,2012 and 2011, 

Govemmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

Revenue 
Program revenue 
General revenue and 

transfers 
Total revenue and 

tiansfers 

Expenses 

$ 

$_ 

General and admimstiative $ 
Pubhc safety 
Parks and stieets 
Samtation 
Recreation 
Combmed utilities 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in 
net position 

L 

L 

2012 

562,002 

1,447,838 

2.009,840 

402,545 
671,236 
294,219 
194389 
95,217 

-
-

1,657,606 

352,234 

$ 

i_ 

$ 

SL 

$_ 

2011 

915,344 

1,126,262 

2,041,606 

329,%8 
637,291 
301,929 
141,398 
86,967 

-
-

1,497,553 

544,053 

S 

§_ 

$ 

I. 

i-

2012 

1,761,958 

8,432 

1,770390 

-
-
-
-
-

1,962,433 
8,206 

1,970,639 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

E 

(200,249) $ 

2011 

1,940,269 

272,788 

2,213,057 

-
-
-
-
-

2,169,317 
17.925 

2,187.242 

25,815 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

I. 

i 

2012 

2323,960 

1,456,270 

3,780,230 

402,545 
671,236 
294,219 
194389 
95,217 

1,962,433 
8,206. 

3.628.245 

151,985 

$ 

L 

$ 

L 

$_ 

2011 

2,855,613 

1399,050 

4.254,663 

329,968 
637,291 
301,929 
141,398 
86,967 

2,169317 
17,925 

3,684,795 

569,868 

Net position, begmnmg $ 5,983,1% $ 5,456,263 $ 5,213,671 $ 5,187,856 $11,196,867 $10,644,119 
Pnor period adjushnent 149,174 (17,120) - ^ 149,174 (17,120) 
Net position, beginning, 
as restated $ 6,132,370 $ 5,439.143 $ 5,213,671 $ 5,187.856 $ 11346,041 $ 10.626,999 

Net position, endmg $ 6.484,604 $ 5.983.196 $ 5.013.422 $ 5.213.671 $ 11.498.026 $ 11,196.867 

Governmental Activities 

The govemmental activities of the Town mclude General Govemment, Pubhc Safety, Pubhc Works, Recreation, 
and Payment of Interest on Long-Term Debt In that revenues normally associated with mumapal operations 
(e g, sales tax, property tax, franchise fees, hcense fees, samtation fees, permits, fmes, and operatmg grants) are 
insuffiaent for the funding of these activities, the Town relies on tiansfers of excess revenue from its special 
revenue fund and enterprise fund to cover the cost of all activities 

Busmess-Type Activities 

The business-type activities of the Town are those that charge a fee to customers for the services provided. The 
Town has one busmess-type activity, which is accounted for m the enterprise fund The Town uses the 
enterprise fund to account for the revenues and expenses related to the provision of water, gas, and sewer 
services. 



TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENrS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2012 

Govemment-Wide Financial Analysis (contmued) 

Business-Type Activities (contmued) 

The followmg is a summary of the busmess-type activities of the Town: 

Operatmg Revenues 

Water Gas Sewer Total 

Year ended December 31,2011 $ 
Year ended December 31,2012 _ 
Increase (decrease) between years $̂  

738,282 
736,231 
(2.051) £ 

895,240 
755,848 

259,076 
250,879 

(139392) 1 (8.197) £ 

Operatmg Expenses 

Water Gas Sewer 

1,892,598 
1,742,958 
(149.640) 

Total 

Year ended December 31,2011 $ 
Year ended December 31,2012 _ 
Increase (decrease) between years 1, 

Year ended December 31,2011 $ 
Year ended December 31,2012 _ 
Increase (decrease) between years £, 

783,260 
674,186 

828,777 
722.253 

557,280 
565,994 

(1Q9.Q74) $ (106.524) ^ 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Water Gas Sewer 

(44,978) 
62,045 

66,463 
33,595 

(298,204) 
(315,115) 

107.023 i . (32.868) 1 (16.911) 1 

2,169,317 
1,962,433 

J ^ $ (206.884) 

Total 

(276,719) 
(219,475) 

.5Z.2M 

The reasons for the major fluctuations noted above are as follows 

Revenues decreased by approximately 8% durmg the year primarily due to decreases in customer utihty 
consumption. Expenses decreased by approximately 10% because of decreases m the water and gas operatmg 
costs. 

Fund Hnancial Statements - Governmental Funds 

The fund fmancial statements provide more detailed information about the Town's most significant funds - not 
the Town as a whole Funds are accountmg devices that the Town uses to keep track of specific sources of 
funding and spendmg for a particular purpose 

The Town currently mamtains three govemmental fund types. They are the General, Special Revenue, and 
Capital Projects Fund The Town also mamtains two Fiduciary or Agency Funds. They are the Payroll Clearing 
Fund and the Accounts Payable Cleanng Fimd. The General Fund and Special Revenue Fund are presented 
separately in the Govemmental Funds Balance Sheet (Statement C) and the Govemmental Fund Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Statement E), because they are considered to be major 
funds 



TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2012 

Fund Financial Statements - Govemmental Funds (contmued) 

The Town adopts annual budgets for the General and the Special Revenue Funds Statements of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes m fund balance are presented m the Required Supplemental Information (Part H), 
which compares actual revenues and expenditures to the original budget and amended budget figures. 

Financial Analysis of the Town's Govemmental Funds 

The Town of Jena's governmental funds reported an endmg fund balance of $2,719,234, which is a increase of 
$287,742 The increase was primarily due to a positive net change m the sales tax fund. $10 is reserved for 
capital projects, and the remammg fund balance of $2,719,224 is unreserved. 

Fund Financial Statements - E^oprietary Funds 

The Town maintains one proprietary fund. Propnetary funds are used to report the same functions as busmess-
type activities The Town uses an enterprise fund (the first type of proprietary fund) to account for its combmed 
water, gas, and sewer operations This enterprise fund reports the same functions presented as busmess-type 
activities m the government-wide fmancial statements 

Fmancial Analysis of the Town's Proprietary Fund 

The Town's propnetary fund showed a decrease in ending fund balance of $200,249 and an operating loss m the 
muniapal utihties system of $219,475. These decreases are the result of an operating loss in the sewer system of 
$315,115. The gas and water systems showed an operating mcome of $33395 and $62,045, respectively 

In that fmancial statements of enterprise funds are presented on the same basis of accounting as in both the 
govemment-vdde financial statements and the individual fund statements, all comments and analysis made 
under busmess-type activities apply to these funds. 

General Fund and Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund Budgetary Highhghts 

The major differences between the origmal budget, the fmal amended budget, and the actual data for the 
General Fund and the Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund are 

General Fund 

Budgeted amounts were amended durmg the year 

The General Fund has an overall negative vanance of $36,543 This variance was primarily due to general 
govemment expenses related to the rehabilitation of the Strand Theatre not bemg budgeted 



TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2012 

Fund Financial Statements - Proprietary Funds (continued) 

General Fund and Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund Budgetary Highhghts (contmued) 

Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 

Tax revenues were higher than expected. General expenditures were higher than budgeted. Operating 
tiansfers-out were lower than budgeted. Overall the Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund had a positive vanance of 
$44,871 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

The total investment m net capital assets as of December 31,2012, is $7366,820 

New major capital assets additions acquired, purchased, or constmcted were as follows 

1 Purchased a dump tmck for $6375 
2 Purchased a Ford F-150 for $17,674 
3 Purchased a grader for $5,007 
4. Upgrades to Chlormation System for $11,600. 
5. Upgrades to Town Hall Roof for $14,889 
6. Rehabilitation ti> Stiand Theatre extenor for $85,135. 
7. Purchased land for future recreational use for $3,000 
8 Purchased mosquito fogger equipment for $10,454. 
9 Purchased new sti^t lights for $35,946. 
10. Purchased a stieet sweeper for $15,500 
11 Upgrades and repairs to equipment for $7,492 
12 Purchased a new hauhng trailer for $3,975. 
13 Upgrades and repairs to concession stand and recreation fields for $20,000 
14 Constmction of park walking trails and bndges for $133,303. 
15 Upgrades and repairs to the pool for $12,000. 

Current Financial Factors 

The Town saw contmumg mcreases m sales tax revenue throughout the year 2012 That mcrease m revenue is 
set aside for future investments in fixed assets. Jena's first quarter 2013 sales tax collections reflected a 6.5% 
mcrease compared to the same period last year. Town officials contmue to be encouraged by the high 
employment rate in the parish with only a 4 6% unemployment rate m early 2013 Other major revenue sources 
for the Town of Jena vary m the busmess units based on weather conditions, both temperature and amount of 
rainfall 

Requests for Information 

This fmancial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Tov^^ of Jena's fmances for all with an 
interest in the government's operations. Questions concernmg any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional information should be addressed to Cory Floyd, Municipal Clerk, 2908 East Oak Street, 
Jena, Louisiana 71342. 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31,2012 

9 
STATEMENT A 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollecbbles) 
Intemal balances 
Other assets 
Restricted assets 
Capital assets (net) 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts, salanes, and other payables 
Payable from restiicted assets 
Bonds and certificates payable, due withm one year 

Total habihties 

NET POSITION 
Invested m capital assets, net of related debt 
Restiicted for capital projects 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Goverrunental 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

$-

Activities 

2,448,617 
295,943 
(10,550) 

-
72339 

3,765.370 

6,571,919 

14,776 
72,539 

-

87,315 

3,765,370 
10 

-
2,719,224 

6.484.604 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

SL 

$ 

.$_ 

Business-
Type 

Activities 

393,433 
290,478 
10,550 

183,686 
862,811 

3,601,450 

5342.408 

18,323 
120,663 
190,000 

328,986 

3,411,450 
-

735,113 
866,859 

5.013,422 

$ 

— 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

^ 

Total 

2,842,050 
586,421 

-
183,686 
935,350 

7,366,820 

11,914,327 

33,099 
193,202 
190,000 

416301 

7,176,820 
10 

735,113 
3,586,083 

1M98.026 

See accompanymg notes to the basic fmancial statements 



STATEMENTS 
TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF ACnVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

Expenses 
Charges 

for Services 

Program Revenues 
Operatmg 
Grants and 

Contnbutions 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contnbutions 

Net 
(Expenses)/ 

Revenue 

Net (Expenses), 
Revenues, and Changes 

Govemmental 
Activities 

Busmess-Tjrpe 
Activities Total 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACriVl'llES 
General govemment 
Pubhc safety 
Parks and streets 
Sanitation 
Recreation 

Total governmental activities 

BUSINESS-TYPE 
AcnvmES 
Water 
Gas 
Sewer 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total busmess-type 
activities 

Total 

$ 402345 $ 
671,236 
294,219 
194389 
95.217 _ 

$ 1.657.606 1 

$ 674,186 $ 
722,253 
565,994 

8,206 

208,497 
1,086 

176338 
12.153 

398374 $ 

736,231 $ 
755,848 
250379 

S 1.970.639 $ 1.742.958 i . 

$_i628245 $ 2.141532 S 

18,250 
10376 

29.126 i . 

J29<126 t . 

113355 $ 
4,447 

16,000 

19,000 1 

(288,690) $ 
(440,042) 
(266,257) 

(17351) 
(83X)64) _ 

134302 $ (1.095.604) $_ 

6333 $ 68378 
6334 39,929 
6333 (308,782) 

I (8^06) 

(208.681) 1 

153302 S n.V)4..'2SG\ ^ 

(288,690) $ 
(440,042) 
(266,257) 

(17351) 
(83,064) _ 

a.095.604) 1 

- $ 

(1,095.604) i . 

68378 $ 
39,929 

(308,782) 
(8,206) _ 

(208,681) i . 

(288,690) 
(440,042) 
(266,257) 
(17351) 
(83,064) 

^ $ (1,095.604) 

68378 
39,929 

(308,782) 
(8.206) 

(208.681) 

(208.681) $ (1304.285) 

General Revenues 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Investment eammgs 
Other general revenues 

Transfers 
Total general revenues and transfers 

Change m net position 

Net position - begmnmg 
Prior period adjustment 
Net position - beginning, as restated 
Net position - endmg 

1,231302 $ 
183340 

5,762 
4357 

24,645 
(2.268) _ 

1,447338 i . 

352.234 i . 

6.132370 1 
6484.604 

- $ 1,231302 
183340 

5,762 
6,164 10,721 

24,645 
2.268 : 
8.432 i . 

(200.249) 1 

1,456^70 

151,985 

5,983,196 $ 5,213,671 $ 11,196,867 
149.174 ; 149,174 

5.213.671 $ 11346.041 
5-013422 I U ^ m ^ 

See accompemying notes to the basic hnancial statements. 
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Govemmental Funds 



TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

DECEMBER 31,2012 

11 
STATEMENT C 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net of allowances 
for uncollectibles) 

Due from other funds 
Restiicted cash 

Major Funds 

General Fund 
Sales Tax 

Fund 

Other 
Goverrunental 

Funds 

Total 
Govemmental 

Funds 

402,636 $ 2,034,007 $ 

150,395 145,548 
10,952 
72,539 -

11,974 $ 2,448,617 

295,943 
10,952 
72,539 

Total assets $ 2.179.^55 1 11.974 i 2.828.051 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities* 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
Deposits held in protest (ad valorem) 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances. 
Restncted for: 
Capital projects 

Assigned for 
General fund 

Unassigned, reported in 
General Fund 
Special Revenue Fund 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances 

14,776 $ 
9,538 

72.539 _ 

%,853 i . 

72,539 

467,130 
2,179.555 

539,669 $ 2,179.555 i. 

636.522 $ 2.179355 1 

11,964 

11.964 I. 

10 $ 

M $_ 

14,776 
21,502 
72,539 

108,817 

10 

72,539 

467,130 
2.179,555 

2.719,234 

11.974 $ 2.828.051 

See accompanying notes to the basic fmancial statements 



12 
STATEMENT D 

TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 

Amounts reported for governmental activities m the Statement of Net Position are different because 

Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds (Statement C) $ 2,719,234 

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not fmancial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 3,765,370 

Net Position of Govemmental Activities (Statement A) $ 6.484.604 

See accompanymg notes to the basic fmancial statements 



13 
STATEMENT E 

TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Investment eammgs 
Contnbutions 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General govemment 
Pubhc safety 
Parks and streets 
Samtation 
Recreation 

Total expenditures 

Excess (dehciency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers - in 
Trar\sfers - out 

Ge 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ _ 

$ 

Major 

neral Fund 

226,446 
183,540 
140,893 
309,245 

89,329 
228 

2,100 
24,645 

976,426 

507,296 
650,769 
299,968 
157,983 
238,413 

1354,429 

Funds 

$ 

1-

$ 

l_ 

(878.003) $ 

Sales Tax 
Fund 

1,005,156 
-

26,197 
-
-

4329 
-
. 

1,035,682 

16,843 

-

16,843 

1,018,839 

Otiier 
Governmental 

$ 

L. 

$ 

$_ 

L. 

Funds 

-
-
-
-
-
-
_ 

—= 

-

-

—= 

_ 

Total 
Govemmental 

$ 

L. 

$ 

S_ 

i -

Funds 

1,231,602 
183,540 
167,090 
309,245 

89,329 
4,557 
2,100 

24,645 

2,012,108 

524,139 
650,769 
299,968 
157,983 
238,413 

1,871,272 

140,836 

841,000 $ 
(843,268) 

841,000 
(843,268) 

Total other fmancmg 
sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - begmnmg 
Prior period adjustment 
Fund balance - begmnmg, as restated 
Fund balances - endmg 

$ 841,000 $ (843,268) 1 

$ (37.003) $ 175,571 i . 

$ 529,652 $ 1,901,830 $ 
47.020 102,154 _ 

$ 576,672 $ 2,003,984 1 
$ 539.669 a 2.179.555 1 

t 

(2.268) 

138368 

10 $ 2,431,492 
_^ 149.174 
JO $ 2,580.666 
IQ $ 2.719.234 

See accompanying notes to the basic fmancial statements 



14 
STATEMENT F 

TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities m the Statement of Activihes are different because 

Net Change m Fund Balances, Total Govemmental Funds, Statement E $ 138,568 

Governmental funds report capital outiays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful hves and reported as depreaation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outiays exceeded depredation in the current period. 213,666 

Change in Net position of Goverrunental Activities, Statement B $ 352.234 

See accompanymg notes to the basic fmancial statements 



Proprietary Funds 



TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

DECEMBER 31,2012 

15 
STATEMENT G 

ASSETS 
Cunent assets. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 
Due from other govenunents 
Other receivables 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 

Total current assets 

Enterprise Fund 

$ 

$ 

393,433 
284,812 
4,263 
1,403 
16,908 
83,005 

100,681 

884,505 

Noncurrent assets 
Restiicted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 

Total current habilities 

Current habilities payable from restncted assets 
Consumer meter deposits 
Accrued mterest 
Sewer sales tax bonds 

Total current habihties payable from restncted assets 

Total habilities 

NET POSITION 
Invested m capital assets, net of related debt 
Restiicted for debt service 
Unrestiicted 

Total net position 

$ 

? 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ _ 

862,811 
3,601,450 

4,464,261 

5,348,766 

18,323 
6,358 

24,681 

118,123 
2,540 

190,000 

310,663 

335,344 

3,411,450 
735,113 
866,859 

5.013.422 

See accompanymg notes to the basic fmanaal statements 



16 
STATEMENT H 

TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services: 
Water sales 
Gas sales 
Sewer charges 
Other operating revenue 

Total operatmg revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 
Purchase of utilities provided 
Materials and supplies 
Repairs and mamtenance 
Depreciation 
Utihties and telephone 
Insurance 
Bad debts 
Other operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Loss 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Interest earmngs 
Interest expense 
Grants 

Total nonoperatmg revenues (expenses) 

Loss Before Transfers 

Transfers - m 
Transfers - out 

Change in Net Position 

Total net position - beginmng 

Total net position - endmg 

Entc 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ _ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ _ 

r̂prise Fund 

720,078 
739,262 
245,376 
38,242 

1.742,958 

766,594 
260,810 
267,198 
57,156 

273,697 
86,409 

109,608 
12,043 

128.918 

1,962,433 

(219,475) 

6,164 
(8,206) 
19,000 

16,958 

(202317) 

402,268 
(400,000) 

(200,249) 

5,213.671 

5.013.422 

See accompanying notes to the basic fmancial statements 



17 
STATEMENT I 

TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash received from customers 
Payments to supphers for goods and services 
Payments to and on behalf of employees for services 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
Operating tiansfers from other funds 
Operatmg tiansfers to other funds 

Net cash used for noncapital fmancmg activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Capital grants received 
Purchase of capital assets 
Prmcipal paid on capital debt 
Interest paid on capital debt 

Net cash used for capital and related fmancing activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest on temporary mvestments 

Net cash provided by mvestmg activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, begmrung of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash 
Provided bv Operating Activities 
Operating loss 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss 
to Net Cash Provided bv Operating Activities 
Depreciation 
Change in assets and liabihties 

(Increase) decrease m. 
Accounts receivable - customers 
Intergovernmental receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 

Increase (decrease) m. 
Accounts payable 
Accrued habilities 
Customer deposits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 
See accompanymg notes to the basic fmancial statements 

Enterprise Fund 

$ 1,712,543 
(847331) 
(766.594) 

98,418 

395,589 
(396,460) 

^8ZD 

19,000 
(40,656) 

(180,000) 
(11,201) 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

(212357) 

6,949 
6,949 

(108361) 

1,364,605 
S 1.256.244 

$ (219,475) 

273,697 

(23,214) 
4,897 

52,096 
13,654 

180 
(3362) 

(55) 
317,893 

98.418 



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE BASIC HNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

INTRODUCTION 

The Town of Jena, Louisiana (the "Town") was incorporated by proclamation of the Governor m 1906, under 
the provisions of the Lawrason Act. The Town operates under the Mayor-Town Council form of government 
and provides the following services as authorized by the Act: pubhc safety (pohce and tire); stieets; sanitation; 
recreation, pubhc improvements, plannmg and zoning; provision of gas and water utihties, sewer services; and 
general services. 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Town of Jena, Louisiana conform to generally accepted accountmg 
prmciples as apphcable to govemments. 

GASB Statement No. 14, The Reporting Entity, established criteria for determmmg the govemmental reportmg 
entity and component imits that should be mcluded withm the reportmg entity Under provisions of tins 
Statement, the municipahty is considered a primary govemment, smce it is a speaal purpose govenunent that 
has a separately elected govemmg body, is legally separate, and is fiscally mdependent of other state or local 
govemments As used m GASB Statement No. 14, fiscally mdependent means that the mumcipahty may, 
without the approval or consent of another govemmental entity, determme or modify its own budget, levy its 
own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Govemment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide fmancial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the govemment. For the most part, the effect of 
mterfund activity has been removed from these statements Govemmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from busmess-type activities, 
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demorutrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
speafic function or segment Program revenues mclude 1) charges to customers or apphcants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or pnvileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contnbutions that are restiicted to meetmg the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues 

Separate fmanaal statements are provided for govemmental funds and proprietary funds Major 
mdividual governmental funds and major mdividual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide fmanaal statements are reported usmg the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liabihty is incurred, regardless of the tinung of related cash 
flows Property taxes are recognized as revenues m the year for which they are levied Grants and similar 
Items are recognized as revenue as soon as all ehgibility requirements imposed by the provider have been 
met 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE BASIC HNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

Governmental fund fmanaal statements are reported usmg the current fmancial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accountmg. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay habihties of the current penod. For this purpose, the 
govemment considers revenues to be available if they are collected withm 60 days of the end of Oie current 
period. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a hability is incurred, as under accrual accounting However, 
debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, hcenses, and mterest associated with the current penod are all considered to 
be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current penod. All other revenue 
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the govemment. 

The municipality reports the followmg major governmental funds. 

The General Fund is the municipality's primary operating fund It accounts for all fmancial resources of 
the general govemment, except those required to be accounted for in another fund 

The Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund is used to account for revenues generated by the one percent (1%) 
sales and use tax Proceeds are first dedicated to the debt service of the sales tax bond 

The municipality reports the following major propnetary fund 

The Utility Fund is used to account for the provision of gas and water utilities, as well as sewer services 
to residents of the Town and some residents of the Parish. All activities necessary to provide such 
services are accounted for m this fund, including, but not limited to, administiation, operations, 
mamtenance, financing and related debt service, and billmg and collection 

Private-sector standards of accountmg and financial reportmg issued prior to December 1,1989, generally 
are followed m both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not confhct with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accountmg Standards Board 
Govemments also have the option of followmg subsequent pnvate-sector guidance for their busmess-type 
activities and enterprise funds, subject to tius same limitation The govemment has elected not to follow 
subsequent private-sector guidance 

As a general rule the effect of mterfund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide fmanaal 
statements Exceptions to this general rule are payments-m-lieu of taxes and other charges between the 
government's enterprise operations Ehmmation of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned 

Amounts reported as program revenues mclude 1) charges to customers or applicante for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contiibutions, and 3) capital grants and contiibutions 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (contmued) 

Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 

Propnetary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperatmg items Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providmg services and producmg and dehvenng goods m connection with a 
proprietary fund's prmapal on-going operations Operating exper\ses for enterprise funds include the cost of 
sales and services, admimstiative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this defmition are reported as nonoperatmg revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the municipality's pohcy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestiicted resources as they are needed 

C. Deposits and Investments 

The muiuapahty's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term mvestments with original maturities of six months or less from the date of acquisition. State law and the 
municipality's mvestment policy allow the mumcipahty to invest m collateralized certificates of deposit, 
government-backed secunties, commercial paper, the state sponsored investment pool, and mutual funds 
consistmg solely of government-backed secunties The Town currentiy only invests in certificates of deposit 

D. Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lendmg/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the 
year are refened to as either "due to/from other funds" (i e., the cunent portion of mterfund loans) or "advances 
to/from other funds" (i e , the noncurrent portion of mterfund loans) All other outstandmg balances between 
funds are reported as "due to/from other funds " Any residual balances outstandmg between the govemmental 
activities and busmess-type activities are reported m the govemment-wide financial statements as "intemal 
balances." 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Uncollectible 
amounts due for ad valorem taxes and customer's utility receivables are recognized through the estabhshment of 
an allowance account at the time information becomes available which would indicate the uncollectibility of the 
particular receivable 

The Town aimually levies ad valorem taxes in accordance with state statute for the year ended December 31 Tax 
bills are prepared and delivered in October with payment due from the date of receipt to the last day of February. 

The Town bills and collects its own property taxes usmg the assessed values determined by the Tax Assessor of 
LaSalle Parish. 

For the year ended December 31, 2012, taxes of 5 87 mills were levied on property with assessed valuations 
totahng $23,230,664, after abatements and exemptions and were dedicated as follows: 

General corporate purposes Mills 5 87 

Total taxes levied were $ 136364 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE BASIC HNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

E. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

Inventory is valued at replacement cost, which approximates market, usmg the first-m/tirst-out (FIFO) method. 
Inventory used for the maintenance of the utility system is accounted for in the Utility Fund as assets when 
purchased and recorded as expenses when consumed Inventory for office use is accounted for m the General 
and Utihty Funds as expenditures or expenses when purchased Amounts of office inventory on hand are 
immaterial Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2012, are 
recorded as prepaid expenses m the enterprise fund 

F. Restricted Assets 

Certain proprietary fund assets are classified as restricted assets because their use is hmited by apphcable bond 
covenants. "Sewer sales tax bond sinking account and reserve account" segregate resources accumulated for debt 
service payments of the sewer revenue bonds "Customers' deposit account" consists of funds received from 
customers for utihty deposits. 

G. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which mclude property, plant, equipment, and infrastiucture assets (eg., roads, bndges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are rejsorted in the apphcable govemmental or busmess-type activities columns m 
the govemment-wide fmancial statements Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if 
historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at 
the date of donation. The municipality mamtains a threshold level of $2,500 or more for capitalizing capital assets 
used in the governmental fimds. 

The costs of normal mamtenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materiaUy extend assets' 
hves are not capitalized 

Major outiays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incuned 
during the constiuction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized 
value of the assets constructed 

All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the stiaight-line method over the following useful lives 

Description Estimated Lives 
Govemmental activities 

Land improvements 30 years 
Buildings 40 years 
Vehicles 5-15 years 
Machinery and equipment 5-15 years 

Business-type activities/Enterprise Fund 

Buildings 25 years 
Infrastructure 20 - 50 years 
Machinery and equipment 10 - 20 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE BASIC HNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIHCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

H. Compensated Absences 

The habihty for compensated absences has not been accmed because the amount is considered to be 
immaterial 

I. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and the propnetary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as habihties in the applicable 
govemmental activities, busmess-type activities, or propnetary fund type statement of net position. Bond 
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are defened and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the effective interest method Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as defened charges and amortized over the term of the related 
debt 

In the fund fmancial statements, govenunental fund types recogruze bond preimums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the cunent period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other 
fmancmg sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

J. Fund Equity 

Beginnmg with fiscal year 2011, the Tovm implemented GASB Statement 54 "Fund Balance Reporting and 
Govemmental Fund Tyjje Definitions" This statement provides more clearly defmed fund balance 
categones to make the nature and extent of the constiamts placed on a government's fund balance more 
tiansparent The followmg classifications descnbe the relative strength of the spending constiaints placed 
on the purposes for which resources can be used 

• Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not m a spendable form (such as inventory) or are 
required to be mamtamed intact, 

• Restiicted fund balance - amounts constiamed to specific purposes by theti providers (such as 
grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of govemment), through constitutional provisions, or by 
enablmg legislation; 

• Committed fund balance - amounts constiamed to specific purposes by a govemment itself, usmg 
its highest level of decision-makmg authority, to be reported as committed, amoimts cannot be used 
for any other purpose unless the govemment takes the semie highest level action to remove or 
change the constiaint, 

• Assigned fund balance - amounts a govemment mtends to use for a specific purpose, mtent can be 
expressed by the govemmg body or by an official or body to which the govemmg body delegates 
the authority, 

• Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose (such as the purchase of 
fixed assets, constiuction, debt service, or for other purposes) 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

J. Fund Equity (continued) 

The Town establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance or 
j resolution This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget A fund balance commitment 
j IS further mdicated m the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund (such as for speaal 

incentives). Assigned fund balance is established by the Town through adoption or amendment of the budget as 
intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase of fixed assets, construction, debt service, or for other 
purposes) 

In the general fund, the Town strives to maintain an unassigned fund balance to be used for unantiapated 
emergencies 

K. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements m conformity with accountmg principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to m£ike estimates and assumphons that affect the reported amoimts of 
assets and habilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 

j the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses durmg the reporting penod Actual results could 
{ differ from those estimates 

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Budgets and Budgetary Accountmg 

The Town follows procedures established by Louisiana Revised Statute m the preparation and adoption of its annual 
operating budgets as follows 

1 The Town Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Mayor and Town Council no later than 
fifteen days prior to the beginnmg of each year 

2, A sununary of the proposed budget is published and the pubhc notified that the proposed budget is available for 
public inspection At the same time, a public hearing is called 

3 A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after pubhcation of the call for the hearmg 

4. After the holdmg of the public heanng and completion of all action necessary to finalize and implement the 
budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the commencement of the year for which 
the budget is bemg adopted. 

5. Budgetary amendments mvolving the transfer of funds from one department, program, or function to another or 
mvolvmg mcreases m expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amoimts estimated require the approval 
of the Town Counal 

6 All budgetary appropnations lapse at the end of each year 

7 Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accountmg prmaples (GAAP) Budget amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended from time to time by 
the Town Council 
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Unrestiicted 

$ 2,132,917 
708,733 

400 

$ 2.842.050 

$ 

L 

Restiicted 

611,913 
323,437 

935350 

$ 

$ _ 

Total 

2,744,830 
1,032,170 

400 

3;///.400 

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

At December 31, 2012, the municipality had unrestiicted cash and cash equivalents totalmg $2,842,050 and 
restiicted cash and cash equivalents of $935350 as follows. 

Demand deposits 
Time deposits 
Cash on hand 

Total 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resultmg 
bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of secunties owned by the fiscal 
agent bank The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times 
equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held m the name of the pledging fiscal 
agent bank m a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties 

At December 31,2012, the murucipahty had $3,599,809 m deposits (collected bank balances). These deposits are 
secured from risk by $2,816,833 of federal deposit insurance and $3,509,161 of pledged securities held by the 
custodial bank m the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3). 

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncoUateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB 
Statement 3, R.S. 39.1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the 
pledged secunties within 10 days of being notified by the municipality that the fiscal agent has failed to pay 
deposited funds upon demand 

Effective January 1, 2013, non-mterest bearmg deposits no longer have unlimited FDIC coverage and will be 
subject to the $250,000 linuL Had this been m effect at December 31, 2012, it would have resulted in deposits 
secured from risk by FDIC m the amount of $658,662. Collectively with the pledged secunties the Town would 
have been over collateralized by $568,014 

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES 

Class of Receivable 
Taxes* 

Ad valorem 
Sales 

Intergovernmental 
State 
Local 

Accounts 
Otiier 
Allowance for uncollectibles 

General 
Fund 

$ 31,126 
-

6,815 
-

38,591 
73,863 

-

Sales Tax 
Fund 

$ 
118,798 

_ 
-
-

26,750 
-

Enterprise 
Fund 

$ - 1 
-

_ 

4,263 
372,708 

1,403 
(87,896) 

Total 

% 31,126 
118,798 

6315 
4,263 

411,299 
102,016 
(87,896) 

Total $ 150.395 $ 145.548 $ 290.478 $ 586.421 
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NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES (continued) 

Uncollectible amounts due for customers' utihty receivables are recognized as bad debts through the 
establishment of an allowance account at the time information becomes available which would mdicate the 
uncollectibility of the receivable 

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS 

A summary of individual receivables and payables reflected as "due to/due from other funds" as of 
December 31,2012, follows 

Interfund 
Receivable Pavable 

General fund $ 10,952 $ 9,538 
Nonmajor governmental funds - 11,964 
Enterprise fund 16,908 6,358 

Totals $ 27.860 $ 27360 

Interfund transfers durmg the year ended December 31,2012, were as follows: 

Operating Transfers 
I 

General fund 
Special revenue fund 
Enterprise fund 

Totals 

Transfers are primarily used to move funds from. 

1 The Special Revenue Sales Tax Fund to the Utihty Fund to cover the debt service and required reserves of 
the sewer sales tax bonds and certam expenses of the sewer and water systems. 

2 The Utility Fund to the General Fimd to cover payroll expenditures 

$ 

1= 

In 

841,000 
-

402,268 

.̂̂ 43.268 

$ 

i _ 

Out 

843,268 
400,000 

1,243.268 
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended December 31,2012, is as follows; 

Governmental activities 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 
Land 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreaated 
Buildmgs 
Other improvements 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Construction m progress 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Buildings 
Other improvements 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreaation 
Total capital assets bemg depreciated, net 
Total capital assets, net 

Busmess-type activities* 
Capital assets, not bemg depreaated 
Land 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Sewer disposal system 
Natural gas distnbution system 
Water plant and system 
Service eqmpment 

Less accumulated depreciation for. 
Sewer disposal system 
Natural gas distnbution system 
Water plant and system 
Service equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 
Total capital assets, net 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

563,123 i . 3,000 1 
563,123 3,000 1 

Endmg 
Balance 

$ 566,123 
$ 566,123 

$ 

$ 

945,242 
473,495 

1,159,469 
2,382,145 

4.960351 

(188,928) 
(177,070) 
(853,707) 
(752,065) 

$ 

$ " 

$ 

100,024 
153302 
85367 

41,679 
380372 

(20,869) 
(27335) 
(41,084) 
(71,622) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(85,956) 

(85.956) 

77360 

$ 1,045,266 
626,797 

1,158380 
2,382,145 

41,679 
$ 5,254,767 

$ (209,797) 
(204,605) 
(817,431) 
(823,687) 

$ n.971,770) 
$ 2.988381 

$ (161.110) 
219,262 

$ 3.551.704 a 222.262 

30349 
30349 1 

4,580,763 
2,698385 
3,045,750 

987342 

$ 
$ 
9 

$ 
$ 

77360 
(8396) 
(8396) 

-

$ (2,055,520) 
$ 3,199,247 
a 3.765370 

30349 
30349 

11,600 
29,056 

Total capital assets bemg depreciated $ 11,312.440 $_ 40.656 

$ (2,764,515) $ (106348) $ 
(2,271,226) (67,103) 
(1,657,502) (58,842) 

(815.255) (41.204) 

$ (7.508,498) $ (273,697) 1 
$ 3,803,942 $ (233,041) 1 

$ (233.041) t 

$ 4,580,763 
2,698385 
3,057350 
1.016,398 

$ 11,353,096 

$ (2371,063) 
(2338,329) 
(1,716,344) 

(856,459) 

$ (7,782,195) 
$ 3370,901 
S 3.601.450 
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

Depreciation expense of $161,110 for the year ended December 31, 2012, was charged to the followmg 
govemmental functions 

General govemment $ 20,109 
Pubhc safety 
Pohce 18,867 
Fue 6,112 

Pubhc works 
Parks and streets 62,251 
Sanitation 28,665 

Recreation 25,106 

Total $ 161.110 

NOTE 7 - ACCOUNTS, SALARIES, AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Payables at December 31,2012, are as follows 

Payable from uiuestncted assets* 
Accounts payable 

Total payable from uiuestncted assets 

Payable from restiicted assets. 
Meter deposits 
Deposits held m protest (ad valorem) 
Accmed habihties and other 
payables 

Total payable from restiicted assets 

$_ 

$ 

t-

General 
Fund 

14,776 

14.77^ 

72339 

72339 

$ 

Enterprise 
Fund 

18323 

18-323 

118,123 

2,540 

120.663 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 

33,099 

33,099 

118,123 
72,539 

2,540 

193.202 

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The followmg is a summary of the long-term obhgation tiansactions for the year ended December 31,2012: 

Enterprise 
Fund 

Sales Tax 
Bond Totals 

Long-term obligations at beginning of year $ 370,000 
Additions 
Deductions (180,000) 
Long-term obligations at end of year $ 190.000 

$ 

$ 

370,000 

(180,000) 
190.000 
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

The followmg is a summary of the cunent (due in one year or less) and the long-term (due in more than one 
year) portions of long-term obhgations as of December 31,2012* 

Enterprise 
Fund 

Sales Tax 
Bond 

Current portion $ 190,000 
Long-term portion ^ 

Totals $ 190.000 

Long-term debt as of December 31,2012, is comprised of the following. 

Enterprise Fund 
Sewer System Sales Tax Bonds payable to finance the constmction of sewer 
system improvements m the amount of $2,595,131.59, dated Aprd 22, 1992, 
payable m annual installments of prmcipal and mterest commencing on 
March 1,1993, and endmg on March 1, 2013, with an mterest rate of 4 50% The 
proceeds of a one percent (1%) sales and use tax have been irrevocably pledged 
and dedicated to the payment of prmcipal and interest on the bonds. J 190,000 

Total $ 190.000 

The aimual requuements to amortize all outstanding debt as of December 31,2012, including mterest payments, 
are as follows: 

Enterprise Fund 
Sewer Sales Tax Bonds 

Prmcipal Interest Totals 
2013 $ 190,000 $ 4,275 $ 194,275 

$ 190,000 $ 4,275 | 194,275 

In accordance with R S. 39*562, the mumcipahty is legally restricted from incurrmg long-term bonded debt m 
excess of 35% of the assessed value of taxable property At December 31, 2012, the statutory hmit was 
$8,130,732. 

In addition, the mumcipahty is legally restncted from incurrmg long-term bonded debt secured by sales and 
use taxes m excess of 75% of the avails of the tax The mumcipahty was withm this 75% limitation in 1992, 
when the sales tax bonds were issued 

The material provisions of the Sewer System Sales Tax Bond covenants are as follows 

1 The Town will irrevocably pledge and dedicate the proceeds of the one percent (1%) sales and use tax 
authorized at a speaal election to the payment of principal and mterest on the bonds. 

2 The Town will estabhsh service fees and charges at such rates as will yield annual revenues sufficient m 
amount to pay the costs of operatmg and mamtaming the sewer system and to provide for the renewal and 
replacement of the sewer system 
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

3 The Town will tiansfer monthly to a debt service sirJcing account accumulations for the payments of prinapal 
and interest due on the bonds. 

4 The Town will estabhsh a reserve account equal to the maximum future prmapal and mterest due m any future 
year Momes in this fund may be used for pnncipal and mterest payments, if necessary 

5. The Town may not create debt having prionty over these bonds 

After meetmg the above provisions, any surplus m the Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund may be used for any other 
purpose for which the sales tax was levied. 

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Substantially all employees of the Town of Jena, Louisiana, are members of the Mumapal Employees Retirement 
System of Louisiana This system is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a 
separate board of trustees. Pertinent information relative to the plan follows: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

Plan Descnption, The System is composed of two distinct plans. Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit 
provisions All eligible employees of the mumcipahty are members of Plan A 

All permanent employees workmg at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by another pension plan and are 
paid wholly or m part fi'om muiUcipal funds and all elected municipal officials are ehgible to participate m the 
System Under Plan A, employees who retire at or after age 60 with at least 10 years of creditable service, at or after 
age 55 with at least 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled 
to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3% of their final-average salary for each year of creditable 
service Fmal-average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce 
the highest average Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above, and do not 
withdraw their employee contiibutions, may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their 
date of termmation The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by 
state statute. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that mcludes finanaal statements and required 
supplemental information for the System. That report may be obtamed by writing to the Municipal Employees' 
Retirement System of Louisiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling (504) 925-
4810 

Funding Policy Under Plan A, members are required by state statute to contnbute 9 25% of their annual covered 
salary and the Town of Jena, Louisiana is required to contribute at an actuanally determined rate. The Town's 
contnbuhon rate was 16 75% from January 1, 2012 to June 30, 2012, and 1700% fi'om July 1, 2012 to December 31, 
2012 Contributions to the System also mclude one-fourth of 1% (except Orleans and East Baton Rouge parishes) of 
the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of each parish These tax dollars are divided between Flan A and 
Plan B based proportionately on the salaries of the active members of each plan The contnbution reqmrements of 
plan members and the Town of Jena, Louisiana are established and may be amended by state statute As provided by 
R.S 11*103, the employer contnbutions are determmed by actuanal valuation and are subject to change each year 
based on the results of the valuation for the pnor year The Town of Jena, Louisiana's contributions to the System 
under Plan A for the years ending December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, were $176,723, $150,897, and $136,993, 
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of I^uisiana 

Eligible employees of the Town participate in the Muiucipal Police Employees' Retirement System, which is a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system. The plan is controlled and 
administered by a separate board of trustees Pertinent information relative to the plan follows. 

Plan description - All full-time pohce department employees engaged m law enforcement are required to participate 
m the System. Employees who retire at or after age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service or at or after age 55 
with at least 12 years of aeditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 31/3% 
of their fmal-average salary for each year of creditable service Final-average salary is the employee's average salary 
over the 35 consecutive or jomed months that produce the highest average Employees who terminate with at least 
the amount of creditable service stated above, and do not withdraw their employee contnbutions, may retire at the 
ages speafied above and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termmation The System also provides death and 
disability benefits Benefits are estabhshed or amended by state statute 

The System issues an annual pubhcly available finanaal report that includes financial statements and required 
supplemental information for the System. That report may be obtamed by writmg to the Municipal Pohce 
Employees' Retuement System, 8401 Umted Plaza Boulevard, Room 270, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809-7017. 

Funding Policy - Plan members are required by state statute to contnbute 10.00% of their annual covered salary and 
the Town is required to contribute at an actuanally determmed rate. The Town's contiibution rate was 26 50% from 
January 1,2012 to June 30,2012, and 31 00% fi'om July 1,2012 to December 31, 2012. The contiibution requirements of 
plan members and the Town are established and may be amended by state statute As provided by R S 11.103, the 
employer contnbutions are detemuned by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results 
of the valuation for the prior fiscal year The contributions to the System for the years endmg December 31, 2012, 
2011, and 2010, were $23,825, $26,162, and $17,451, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

NOTE 10 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR UTILITY FUND 

The Enterpnse Fund operated by the Town provides water, natural gas, and sewer utiUty services. The followhig is a 
summary of segment information fbr the Enterpnse Fund 

Water 
System 

Gas 
System 

Sewer 
System 

Operatmg revenue 
Purchase of natural gas 
Operatmg expense 
Depreciation 

Operatmg mcome (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Interest mcome 
Interest expense 
Grants 
Operatmg transfers - m 
Operatmg transfers - out 

736,231 $ 

(601,610) 
(72,576) 

755,848 
(260,810) 
(380,605) 
(80.838) 

250,879 

(445,711) 
(120,283) 

Total 
1,742,^8 
(260,810) 

(1,427,926) 
(273.697) 

(219,475) 

6,164 
(8,206) 
19,000 

402,268 
(400,000) 

Net decrease in net position $ (200.2491 
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NOTE 11 - COMPENSATION PAID TO MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL 

In accordance with the requirements of the Office of the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, the followmg 
reflects compensation paid to the Mayor and members of the Town Council of the Town of Jena, Louisiana, for 
the year endmg December 31,2012 

Mayor, Murphy McMilhn $ 43,264 
Town Counal 

Donnie Kendnck 3,900 
Donald G. Richardson 3,900 
Cari Newburg 3,900 
David Paul Jones 3,900 
Tommy Sandifer 3,900 

Total $ 62.764 

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destmction of assets; errors 
and omissions; mjuries to employees; and natural disasters The Town carries commercial insurance for these 
risks. Settied claims resulting from these msured risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage m 
any of the past three years 

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, 
principally the federal govemment. Any disallowed claims, mcludmg amounts already collected, may 
constitute a liability of the applicable funds The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by 
the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

NOTE 14 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

A prior period adjustment was made to the govemmental activities The adjustment was due to a change m 
revenue recognition m the previous years and is as follows 

Govemmental Activihes 
General Fund $ 47,020 
Sales Tax Fund $ 102,154 

The adjustment in the general fund is m connection with occupational licenses receivable The adjustment m 
the sales tax fund is in coimection with sales taxes receivable 
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GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

Revenues 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Contributions 
Otiier 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 
General govemment 
Public safety: 
PoUce 
Fire 
Animal contiol 

Pubhc works: 
Parks and stieets 
Scmitation 

Recreation 
Total expenditures 

$ 

i_ 

$ 

$_ 

Budgeted 
Ongmal 

228,200 
196325 
49,776 

305,000 
90,000 
2,000 
4300 

876,601 

383359 

421,987 
211396 

5,000 

292360 
147,639 
70,490 

1,533,431 

Amounts 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Final 

228,200 
196325 
154,066 
305,000 
90,000 
2,000 
4,800 

980,891 

418359 

441,987 
211,896 

5,000 

316360 
147,639 
279,490 

1321,431 

$ 

i_ 

$ 

$ 

Achial 

226,446 
183340 
140393 
309,245 
89,329 
2,100 

24,873 
976,426 

507,296 

440360 
202,611 

7,298 

299,968 
157,983 
238,413 

1354,429 

Vanance Witii 

— 

$ 

L 

$ 

$_ 

Fmal Budget 
Positive 

(Negative) 

a.754) 
(13,285) 
(13,173) 

4,245 
(671) 
100 

20,073 
(4,465) 

(88,437) 

1,127 
9,285 

(2,298) 

16,592 
(10,344) 
41,077 

(32,998) 

Revenues under expenditures 

Other Financing Sources 
Operatmg transfers - m 

Total other financing 
sources 

Excess (defiaency) of revenues 
and other sources over (under) 
expenditures 

Fund balance - beginning 
of year 

Prior period adjustment 

Fund balance - beginning, as 
restated 

Fund balance - end of year 

(656.830) i (840340) 1 (878,003) i 

655,000 $_ 841.000 $_ 841.000 t 

655,000 841,000 1 841,000 $_ 

(1,830) $_ 460 i . (37.003) i . 

$ 529,652 $ 529352 $ 529,652 $ 

47,020 47.020 47.020 _ 

576,672 $ 576372 i . 576,672 1 

574342 i 577.132 i . 539.669 i . 

(37.463) 

(37,463) 

(37.4631 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



33 

TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SPEOAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

Revenues 
Taxes 
Grants 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 
General government 

Total ex];>enditures 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 
Operating tiansfers - out 

Total other financing 
uses 

Excess of revenues over 
exjTcnditures 
and other uses 

Fund Balance - beginning 
of year 

Prior period adjustment 

Fund balance - beginning, as 
restated 

Fund Balance - end of year 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Fmal Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

940,000 $ 990,000 $ 1,005,156 $ 15,156 
26,197 26,197 

6,000 6,000 4329 (1,671) 
39,682 $ 946,000 $ 996.000 $ 1,035,682 $_ 

15,100 $_ 
15,100 $_ 

17,700 1 
17,700 i. 

16.843 i. 
16,843 $_ 

$ 930,900 $ 978300 $ 1,018,839 1 

$ (661,600) $ (847.600) $ (843,268) $_ 

$ (661,600) $ (847,600) $ (843.268) $_ 

S 269,300 $ 130,700 $ 175,571 $_ 

$ 1,901330 $ 1,901330 $ 1,901,830 $ 

102.154 102.154 102,154 

$ 2,003.984 $ 2,003,984 $ 2.003,984 1 

857 
857 

40,539 

4,332 

4,332 

44,871 

$ 2.273.284 $ 2.134.684 $ 2.179.555 % 44371 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

1 Basis of Presentation 

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents the ongmal legally adopted budget, the final legally adopted 
budget, the actual data on the GAAP basis, and vanances between the fmal budget and the actual data 

2 Budget Amendments and Revisions 

The budget is adopted by the Town Council. Amendments can be made on the approval of the Town 
Council A budgetary comparison is presented for the General Fund and each major special revenue fund 
consistent with accounting prmaples generally accepted m the Umted States of America 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

Fiduciarv Funds 
Accounts 
Payable Payroll 
Clearing Qearmg 

Fund Fund Total 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash 

Total assets 

$ 

i= 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabihties 
Due to other fiinds 

Total habihties 

Fund Balances 
Reserved for 

! Capital projects 

{ Total fund 
i balances 
1 

Total liabilities 
and fund 
balances 

$ 

$ 

$ 

? . 

$ 

10 $ 

IQ $ _ 

- $ 

- $ 

10 $ 

10 $ 

10 $ 

8356 $ 

_B456 $ _ 

8,356 $ 

8,356 $ 

- $ 

- $ 

8.356 a _ 

3,608 $ 

_ J ^ $_ 

3,608 $ 

3,608 $ 

- $ 

- ? 

3.608 $ 

11,964 S 

-J1-9&1 & 

11,964 $ 

11.964 $ 

- ? 

- $ 

11.964 $ 

11,974 

11.974 

11,964 

11,964 

10 

10 

11.974 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

REVENUES 

Grants 

Total revenues 

Capital 
Projects 
Fund 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Govemmental 
Funds 

EXPENDITURES 

Expenditures 

Total expenditures 

Revenues under expenditures 

OTHER nNANCING SOURCES 

'Operating tiansfers to general fund 

Total other fmancmg sources 

Excess of expenditures over revenues and other 
fmancmg sources 

Fund balance - beginning of year 

Fund balance - end of year 

10 

111 1 

10 

10 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 



Comparativc/Combining Financial Statements and Schedules 



37 

GENERAL FUND 

This IS the general operating fund of the Town and is used to account for resources traditionally associated with 
govemments, which are not required to be accounted for m another fund. 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts): 
Accounts 
Taxes 
Governmental 
Other 

Due from other funds 
Restncted cash 

Total assets 

2012 

402,636 $ 

636.522 1 

2011 

414,943 

38,591 
31,126 

6,815 
73,863 
10,952 
72,5^9 

35,573 
12,570 
21,906 
59,269 
10,961 
45,580 

600.802 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
Deposits held m protest (ad valorem) 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCE 
Assigned fund balance 
Unassigned fund balance 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1 = 

14,776 
9,538 

72,539 

96,853 

72,539 
467,130 

539,669 

636,522 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ — 

21,972 
3,598 

45,580 

71.150 

45,580 
484,072 

529,652 

600.802 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 
WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 

2012 2011 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fmes and forfeits 
Contnbutions 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

$ 

$ 

226,446 
183,540 
140,893 
309,245 
89,329 
2,100 

24.873 

976,426 

$ 

$ 

233,504 
197,510 
101,486 
310,740 
90,261 
39,964 
4,652 

978,117 

EXPENDITURES 
General govemment 
Pubhc safety: 
Pohce 
Fire 
Animal contiol 

Pubhc works. 
Parks and stieets 
Sanitation 

Recreation 

Total expenditures 

Revenues under expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Operating tiansfers - m 

Total other fmancing sources 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other fmancmg 
sources over (imder) expenditures 

Fund balances - begmnmg of year 
Prior penod adjustment 
Fund balance - beginnmg of year, as restated 
Fund balances - end of year 

507,296 $ 353,654 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

? 

$ 

$ 
$ 

440,860 
202,611 

7,298 

299,968 
157,983 
238,413 

1,854,429 

(878,003) 

841,000 

841,000 

(37,003) 

529,652 
47,020 
576,672 
539.669 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

436,253 
219,957 
4,659 

542,472 
130,171 
79,587 

1,766,753 

(788,636) 

985.362 

985,362 

196,726 

350,046 
(17,120) 
332,926 
529,652 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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SALES TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restiicted to expenditures for 
particular purposes. 

Sales tax special revenue fund is used to account for revenues generated by the one percent (1%) sales and use 
tax Proceeds are first dedicated to the debt service of the sales tax bond 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

SALES TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011 

2012 2011 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Temporary mvestments (at cost) 
Accounts receivable - grant 
Accounts receivable - sales tax 
Accrued interest receivable 

Total assets 

$ 

i = 

1,671,736 
362,271 

26,197 
118,798 

553 

2179.555 

$ 

i== 

1,425,636 
359,203 
116,253 

-
738 

1.901.830 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

LiabUihes 

Fund balance 

Unassigned, fund balance 

Total fund balance 

Total habihties and fund balance 

$ 2,179.555 $ 1,901,830 

$ 2,179,555 $ 1.901,830 

$ 2.179.555 $ 1.901.830 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

SALES TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 
WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

2012 2011 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Grants 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current - general govemment 
Operating expense 
Collection expense 
Capital outiay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Operatmg tiansfers out 

Total other financing uses 

Excess of (deficiency) revenues over (under) 
expenditures and other fmancing sources 

Fund balances - beginnmg of year 
Prior {>enod adjustment 
Fund balances - beginnmg of year, as restated 

Fund balances - end of year 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,005,156 
26,197 
4,329 

1,035,682 

5,648 
11,195 

16343 

1,018,839 

(843,268) 
(843,268) 

175,571 

1,901,830 
102,154, 

2,003,984 

2.179.555 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

944,714 
116,253 

5,830 
1,066,797 

5,645 
8,553 

253,685 
267,883 

798,914 

(1,251,113) 
(1,251,113) 

(452,199) 

2354,029 

2,354,029 

1.901.830 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

LCDBG Public Facilities Program 

To account for the fmancing and construction of street improvements m the Town Fmancing to be provided by 
general revenues, excess sales tax revenues, and by a Federal grant 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

LCDBG PUBLIC FACILITIES PROGRAM 

BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31,2012 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR DECEMBER 31, 2011 

2012 2011 
ASSETS 

Cash 

Total assets 

M 1 10 

IQ ID 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabihties 

Fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

10 10 

IQ $ IQ 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

LCDBG PUBLIC FACILITIES PROGRAM 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011 

2012 2011 
REVENUES 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Total expenditures 

Revenues under expenditures 

? 

? 

$ 

262,443 

262,443 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

Total other financing sources 

Excess of revenues and other fmancmg sources 
over expenditures 

Fund balance - beginning of year 

Fund balance - end of year 

10 10 

IQ 1 IQ 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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UTILITY SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND 

Enterpnse funds are used for operations that are fmanced and operated in a manner similar to private busmess 
enterprises - where the mtent of the govermng body is that the costs of providmg goods and services to the 
general public on a contmumg basis be fmanced or recovered primanly through user charges, or where the 
govemmg body has decided that periodic determmation of net mcome is appropnate for accountabihty 
purposes 

Utility system enterprise fund is used to account for operations of the natural gas distnbution system, water 
distiibution system, and sewer services provided to the residents of the Town and to certain surrounding areas 
All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, mcludmg but not limited to, 
administiation, operations, maintenance, financing, and related debt service, billing, and collection 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011 

2012 2011 

ASSETS 
Current assets 
Cash 
Temporary mvestments (at cost) 
Receivables 
Accounts (net of allowance for doubtful accounts) 
Intergovernmental 
OUier 

Due from other funds 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 

Total current assets 

Noncunent assets 
Restricted assets 
Meter deposit account 
Sewer sales tax bond smkmg account - cash 
Sewer sales tax bond contmgency account - cash 
Sewer sales tax bond reserve account - cash 
Sewer sales tax bond reserve account - certificate of deposit 

Total restricted assets 

Fixed assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 

Fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

Total assets 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

!£-

46,972 
346,461 

284,812 
4,263 
1,403 
16,908 
83,005 

100,681 
884.505 

127,698 
170,045 
239,487 

2,144 
323,437 
862,811 

11,383,645 
(7,782.195) 
3,601,450 

5.348.766 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$_ 

176324 
343366 

261,598 
9,160 
2,188 
10,229 

135,101 
114,335 

1,052,801 

126,179 
166,983 
228,876 
2,142 

320,235 
844,415 

11,342,989 
(7,508,498) 
3,834,491 

5.731.707 

- continued-
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011 

2012 2011 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabihties (payable from current assets) 
Accounts payable 
Accrued tiabihties 
Due to other funds 

Total current habihties (payable from current assets) 

Current habilities (payable from restricted assets) 
Payable from meter deposit account 
Meter deposits 

Payable from sewer sales tax bond smkmg account 
Accrued interest 
Sewer sales tax bonds payable 

Total current habihties (payable from restiicted assets) 

Total current habihties 

Long-term habihties 
Sewer sales tax bonds payable 

Total habilities 

NET POSITION 
Investment m capital assets, net of related debt 
Restncted for debt service 
Uiuestncted 

Total net position 

Total liabilities and net position 

$ 

$ 

18,323 
-

6358 
24,681 

$ 

$ 

18,143 
3,362 
2,818 

24323 

$ 

$ 

$ 

i _ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

i = 

118,123 

2,540 
190,000 
310,663 

335344 

-

334,344 

3,411,450 
735,113 
866.859 

5,013.422 

5348.766 

$ 

$ 

$ 

? 

$ 

$ 

1= 

118,178 

5,535 
180,000 
303,713 

328,036 

190,000 

518,036 

3,464,491 
718,236 

1,030,944 
5,213,671 

5.731707 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
MUNICIPAL UTILITIES SYSTEM 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
ALL DEPARTMENTS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011 

2012 2011 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for sales and services 
Other operating revenue 

Total operating revenues 

$ 

$ 

1,704,716 
38,242 

1,742,958 

$ 

$ 

1,853,821 
38.777 

1,892.598 

i 

•1 

.i 

i 
: 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Natural gas purchases 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Payroll taxes 
Operating supplies 
Gas and oil 
Utihties 
Telephone 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreaation 
Travel 
Trainmg 
Uniform rental 
Professional fees 
Office expense 
Insurance 
Dues and subscnptions 
Lab reports and surveys 
Dmg testmg 
Bad debts 
Miscellaneous 

260,810 $ 
581,032 
177,162 

8,400 
267,198 
43,314 
72,567 
13,842 
57,156 

273,697 
750 

6,602 
9,208 

24,077 
5,220 

109,608 
2,416 

23,905 
1,200 

12,043 
12,226 

385,%0 
532,293 
165,471 

7,672 
224,387 
43,737 
87,379 
8,398 

191362 
301,750 

7 
8,077 
7,258 

16,725 
725 

127,019 
125 

30,967 
1,141 

-
28,864 

Total operatmg expenses 

Operatmg loss 

1,962.433 $_ 

(219.4751 i^ 

2,169317 

(276.719) 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
MUNICIPAL UTILITIES SYSTEM 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
WATER SYSTEM 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011 

2012 2011 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for sales and services 
Other operatmg revenue 

Total operatmg revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Payroll taxes 
Operating supplies 
Gas and oil 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Repairs and mamtenance 
Depreciation 
Travel 
Trammg 
Uniform rental 
Professional fees 
Office expense 
Insurance 
Dues and subscriptions 
Lab reports and surveys 
Bad debts 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating expenses 

Operatmg mcome (loss) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

i _ 

720,078 $ 
16,153 

736,231 $ 

220,840 $ 
60,027 
3,183 

201,891 
3,158 

29,518 
5,983 

13,567 
72,576 

405 
1,127 

874 
9,202 
4,692 

33,163 
1,283 
4,424 
4,137 
4,136 

674,186 $ ' 

6 2 ^ i = 

723,159 
15,123 

738,282 

204,396 
64,365 
2,941 

151,829 
6,055 

36,404 
5,973 

161,142 
102,314 

7 
540 
294 

5,575 
150 

26,237 
-

4395 
-

10,643 

783.260 

(44.978) 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
MUNICIPAL UTILITIES SYSTEM 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
NATURAL GAS SYSTEM 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for sales and services 
Other operating revenue 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Natural gas purchases 
Salanes 
Employee benefits 
Payroll taxes 
Operating supphes 
Gas and oil 
Utihties 
Telephone 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation 
Travel 
Traming 
Uniform rental 
Professional fees 
Office expense 
Insurance 
Dues and subscriptions 
Lab reports and surveys 
Dmg testing 
Bad debts 
Miscellaneous 

Total operatmg expenses 

Operatmg mcome 

2012 2011 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$_ _ 

739,262 
16,586 

755,848 

260,810 
133,168 
67,440 
1,939 

41,935 
37,726 

5,174 
6,908 

20,881 
80,838 

345 
4,800 
7,280 
9,202 

27 
24,528 

-
7,105 
1,200 
4,433 
6,514 

722.253 

33.59S 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

877,015 
18,225 

895,240 

385,960 
119,691 

57,974 
1,730 

43334 
32,024 
5,401 
1,926 

13,655 
99,901 

-
7,042 
6,108 
5,575 

-
29,671 

25 
4,644 
1,141 

-
12,975 

828,7/'/ 

66.463 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
MUNICIPAL UTILITIES SYSTEM 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
SEWER SYSTEM 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 AND 2011 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for sales and services 
Other operating revenue 

Total operatmg revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salanes 
Employee benefits 
Payroll taxes 
Operating supplies 

i Gas and oil 
j Utihties 
A 

] Telephone 
I Repairs and mamtenance 
j Depreciation 

Training 
Uniform rental 
Professional fees 
Office expense 
Insurance 
Dues and subscnptions 
Lab reports and surveys 
Bad debts 

Miscellaneous 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

2012 2011 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ _ 

245,376 
5,503 

250,879 

227,024 
49,695 
3,278 
23372 
2,430 

37,875 
951 

22,708 
120,283 

675 
1,054 
5,673 
501 

51,917 
1,133 

12,376 
3,473 
1,576 

565,994 

(315.115) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s = 

253,647 
5,429 

259,076 

208,206 
43,132 
3,001 
29,224 
5,658 
45,574 
499 

16,565 
99,535 
495 
856 

5,575 
575 

71,111 
100 

21,928 
-

5,246 

557,280 

(298.?04) 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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HDUCIARY FUNDS 
(AGENCY) 

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the govemment as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governments, and/or other funds 

Agency Funds 

Accounts Payable Clearmg Fund - to account for the collection and payment of purchases from vendors and 
suppliers 

Payroll Clearmg Fund - to account for the collection and payment of employee compensation and payroll 
deductions to the appropriate agencies 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

HDUCIARY FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31,2012 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR DECEMBER 31,2011 

ASSETS 

Cash 

Total assets 

i_ 

s= 

Agencv 
Accounts 
Payable 
Clearmg 

Fund 

8,356 

8.356 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabihties 
Due to other funds 

Total habihties 

Fund balance 
Unreserved, undesignated 

Total fund balance 

Total habihties and 
fund balance 

l_ 

i_ 

$_ 

$_ 

1= 

8,356 

8,356 

-

-

8356 

Funds 

$_ 

$_ 

?_ 

^ 

$_ 

t. 

i= 

Payroll 
Clearing 

Fund 

3,608 

3.608 

3,608 

3,608 

-

-

3.608 

$ 

$ _ 

$ 

$ 

^ 

l _ 

1 _ 

Totals 
2012 

11,964 

11.964 

11,964 

11,964 

-

-

11,964 

? 

i= 

$ 

? 

$ _ 

$ 

s= 

2011 

14,774 

14.774 

14,774 

14,774 

-

-

... 14,774 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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# 
SILAS SIMMONS LLP 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS an? ADVISORS 209 N Commerce Street 
PO Box 1027 
Natchez, Mississippi 39121-1027 
Telephone 601442 7411 
Fax. 601 442 8551 

www sHassimmons.com 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Murphy McMilhn, Mayor 
and Members of the Town Coimcil 
Town of Jena, Louisiana 

We have audited, m accordance with auditmg standards generally accepted m the Umted States of 
America and the standards apphcable to fmancial audits contamed m Govemment Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptioller General of the Umted States, the financial statements of the govemmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remammg fund information of 
Town of Jena, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the 
fmancial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Jena, Louisiana's basic fmancial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated May 17,2013 

Intemal Contiol Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performmg our audit of the fmancial statements, we considered the Town of Jena, 
Louisiana's intemal contiol over fmancial reportmg (mtemal contiol) to determme the audit procedures 
that are appropnate m the circumstances for the purpose of expressmg our opmions on the fmancial 
statements but not for the purpose of expressmg an opmion on the effectiveness of the Town of Jena, 
Louisiana's mtemal contiol Accordmgly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town 
of Jena, l^uisiana's mtemal contiol 

A deficiency m mtemal contiol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, m the normal course of performmg their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect misstatements on a timely basis A material weakness is a defiaency, or combination of 
deficiencies, m mtemal contiol such that there is a reasonable possibihty that a material misstatement of 
the entity's fmancial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combmation of deficiencies, m mtemal contiol that is less severe 
than a matenal weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance 

Our consideration of mternal contiol over financial reportmg was for the limited purpose descnbed m the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies m mtemal contiol that 
might be matenal weaknesses or, significant deficiencies Given these Umitations, durmg our audit we 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal contiol that we consider to be matenal weaknesses 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified 

/lli'fiilui.i Anit'itcan lii.tttliiU of CPA,*. /Ui.tJi.'ti/'/ft Stu tel \,'nf CPA.i, Jn'tnuaini ^-^cuily o! ( 'PA > 

http://sHassimmons.com
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Comphance and Other Matters 

As part of obtairung reasonable assurance about whether Town of Jena, Louisiana's financial statements 
' are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its comphance with certam provisions of laws, 
{ regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
i effect on the determination of fmancial statement amounts However, providmg an opinion on 
\ comphance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 

such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncomphance or other matiers that 
are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to descnbe the scope of our testing of intemal contiol and comphance 
and the results of that testmg and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal 
control or on compliance This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Govemment Auditing Standards m considering the entity's mtemal control and compliance Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24*513, this 
report is distiibuted by the Legislative Auditor as a public document 

QQUAA) sdu)umA), ULP 

Natchez, Mississippi 
May 17,2013 
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TOWN OF JENA, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

We have audited the basic fmancial statements of the Town of Jena, Louisiana as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated May 17, 2013 We conducted our audit m 
accordance with auditmg standards generally accepted m the United States of America and the standards 
apphcable to fmancial audits contamed in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptioller General of 
the United States Our audit of the fmanaal statements as of December 31, 2012, resulted in an unqualified 
opinion 

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Reports 

A. Financial Statements; 

1. Type of auditor's report issued on the fmancial statements Unqualified 

B, Report on Intemal Contiol and Comphance Material to the Financial Statements: 

1. Internal contiol over fmancial reporting 

a. Material weakness(es) identihed? No 

b. Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered 

to be matenal weaknesses? None reported 

2 Comphance 

a Matenal noncompliance relatmg to the fmanaal statements? No 

C Federal Awards 

Not apphcable 

D. Management Letter 

1 Was a management letter issued? No 

Section II. Financial Statement Fmdmgs 

Status of Prior Year Fmdmgs 

None 

Current Year Findmgs, Recommendations, and Management's Corrective Action Plan 

None 

Section III Federal Awards, Fmdmgs, and Questioned Costs 

Not apphcable 


